Special Use Permit for **FeuIner Residence Grading** MT RANCH RE Rose Highw

Prepared for:

Christopher and Megan Feulner PO Box 4943 Incline Village, NV 89450

January 8, 2021

Prepared by:



316 CALIFORNIA AVENUE, #154 RENO, NV 89509 (775) 657-0097 BRIAN NEWMAN, PE

Table of Contents

Section 1: Application Documents

- 1. Washoe County Development Application (Special Use Permit for Grading)
- 2. Owner Affidavits
- 3. Property Tax Receipts

Section 2: Project Narrative

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Previous Submittals
- 3. Washoe County Master Plan and Zoning
- 4. Site Analysis
- 5. Site Design
- 6. Project Ingress / Egress and Traffic
- 7. Site Fenestration
- 8. Signage
- 9. Domestic Water Service
- 10. Sanitary Sewerage
- 11. Gas
- 12. Electric, Telephone and Cable Television
- 13. Fencing
- 14. Landscaping
- 15. Phasing
- 16. Property Development Standards
- 17. Phasing
- 18. Special Use Permit Findings

Section 3: Exhibits and Reduced Maps

- 1. Vicinity Map
- 2. Location Map
- 3. Zoning Map
- 4. Master Plan Map
- 5. Assessor Parcel Map
- 6. Architectural Rendering Samples
- 7. Site Photos
- 8. Reduced Tentative Map Sheets

Section 4: Reports and Supporting Information

- 1. Preliminary Title Reports
- 2. Copy of Deed
- 3. Preliminary Hydrology / Drainage Report
- 4. Copy of Geotechnical Report
- 5. Copy of Previous Conditions of Approval for
- 6. SB14-010 (SUP Application for Grading)

Section 1

Application Documents

- 1. Washoe County Development Application Special Use Permit for Grading
- 2. Owner Affidavits
- 3. Property Tax Receipts

Washoe County Development Application

Your entire application is a public record. If you have a concern about releasing personal information, please contact Planning and Building staff at 775.328.6100.

Project Name: Project Address: Project Address: Project Area (acres or square feet): Project Acta (acres or square feet): Project Location (with point of reference to major cross streets AND area locator): Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Property Owner: Professional Consultant: </th <th colspan="2">Project Information s</th> <th>Staff Assigned Case No.:</th> <th></th>	Project Information s		Staff Assigned Case No.:	
Description: Project Address: Project Area (acres or square feet): Project Location (with point of reference to major cross streets AND area locator): Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this application: Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Contact Person: Contact Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Phone: Address: Zip: Ptone: Phone: Fax: Ptone: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Zip: Ptone: Phone: Fax: Ptone: Phone:	Project Name:			
Project Area (acres or square feet): Project Location (with point of reference to major cross streets AND area locator): Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this application: Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Applicant/Developer: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Phone: Fax: Contact Person: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone:	-			
Project Location (with point of reference to major cross streets AND area locator): Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Indicate any previous Washoe County approvation: Case No.(s). Parcel Acreage: Indicate any previous Washoe County approvation: Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Address: Address: Address: Address: Email: Email: Contact Person: Contact Persons to be Contacted: Name: Address: Address: Email: Email: Cip: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Contact Person: Contact Person: Email: Email: Email: Contact Person: Contact Person: Fax:	Project Address:			
Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Assessor's Parcel No.(s): Parcel Acreage: Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this applicant Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this applicant Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this applicant Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Zip: Image: Address: Qither Persons to be Contacted: Name: Address: Contact Person: Image: Address: Zip: Zip: Zip: Image: Image: <td>Project Area (acres or square fe</td> <td>et):</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Project Area (acres or square fe	et):		
Indicate any previous Washoe County approvals associated with this application: Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Address: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Address: Zip: Other: Coll: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cancet Person: Variation: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Contact Person: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Coll: Other: Coll: Other: Coll:	Project Location (with point of re	eference to major cross	streets AND area locator):	
Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Image: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Zip: Zip: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Termail: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Per	Assessor's Parcel No.(s):	Parcel Acreage:	Assessor's Parcel No.(s):	Parcel Acreage:
Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Image: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Zip: Zip: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Termail: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Per				
Case No.(s). Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Address: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Image: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Zip: Zip: Zip: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Termail: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Per				
Applicant Information (attach additional sheets if necessary) Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Cell: Address: Applicant/Developer: Other: Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Address: Other Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Fax: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person:		oe County approval	s associated with this applicat	ion:
Property Owner: Professional Consultant: Name: Name: Address: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Applicant/Developer: Contact Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Qip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: C				
Name: Name: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Name: Name: Address: Zip: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Coltact Person: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Email: Contact Person: Email: Contact Person:	Applicant Inf	ormation (attach	additional sheets if necess	ary)
Address: Zip: Zip: Zip: Phone: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Applicant/Developer: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):	Property Owner:		Professional Consultant:	
Zip:Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:Applicant/Developer:Other Persons to be Contacted:Name:Name:Name:Address:Address:Zip:Zip:Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Email:Cother:Contact Person:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):	Name:		Name:	
Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Email: Email: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Contact Person: Applicant/Developer: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Zip: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Email: Cell: Other: Cell: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Email: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Email: Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District:	Address:		Address:	
Email:Email:Cell:Other:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:Applicant/Developer:Other Persons to be Contactet:Name:Name:Name:Address:Address:Address:Zip:Address:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Email:Email:Fax:Cell:Other:Cell:Contact Person:Cell:Other:Date Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):		Zip:		Zip:
Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:Applicant/Developer:Other Persons to be Contacted:Name:Name:Address:Name:Address:Address:Zip:Address:Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Cell:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Cell:Other:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:	Phone:	Fax:	Phone:	Fax:
Contact Person: Contact Person: Applicant/Developer: Other Persons to be Contacted: Name: Name: Address: Address: Address: Address: Zip: Address: Phone: Fax: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax: Other: Cell: Other: Contact Person: Contact Person: For Office Verson: Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District:	Email:		Email:	
Applicant/Developer:Other Persons to be Contacted:Name:Name:Address:Name:Address:Address:Zip:Address:Zip:Phone:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Cell:Other Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:	Cell:	Other:	Cell:	Other:
Name:Name:Address:Address:Zip:Address:Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):Contact Person:			Contact Person:	
Address:Address:Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Ker Plan Designation(s):Ker Plan Designation(s):	Applicant/Developer:		Other Persons to be Contacted:	
Zip:Zip:Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Ker Plan Designation(s):Ker Plan Designation(s):	Name:		Name:	
Phone:Fax:Phone:Fax:Email:Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):	Address:		Address:	
Email:Email:Cell:Other:Cell:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):		Zip:		Zip:
Cell:Other:Other:Contact Person:Contact Person:Contact Person:For Office Use OnlyDate Received:Initial:Planning Area:County Commission District:Master Plan Designation(s):	Phone:	Fax:	Phone:	Fax:
Contact Person: Contact Person: For Office Use Only Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):	Email:		Email:	
For Office Use Only Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):	Cell:	Other:	Cell:	Other:
Date Received: Initial: Planning Area: County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):	Contact Person:		Contact Person:	
County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):		For Office	e Use Only	
County Commission District: Master Plan Designation(s):	Date Received:	Initial:	Planning Area:	

Special Use Permit Application Supplemental Information

(All required information may be separately attached)

- 1. What is the project being requested?
- 2. Provide a site plan with all existing and proposed structures (e.g. new structures, roadway improvements, utilities, sanitation, water supply, drainage, parking, signs, etc.)
- 3. What is the intended phasing schedule for the construction and completion of the project?
- 4. What physical characteristics of your location and/or premises are especially suited to deal with the impacts and the intensity of your proposed use?
- 5. What are the anticipated beneficial aspects or affects your project will have on adjacent properties and the community?
- 6. What are the anticipated negative impacts or affect your project will have on adjacent properties? How will you mitigate these impacts?
- 7. Provide specific information on landscaping, parking, type of signs and lighting, and all other code requirements pertinent to the type of use being purposed. Show and indicate these requirements on submitted drawings with the application.

8. Are there any restrictive covenants, recorded conditions, or deed restrictions (CC&Rs) that apply to the area subject to the special use permit request? (If so, please attach a copy.)

□ Yes	🗅 No
-------	------

9. Utilities:

a. Sewer Service	
b. Electrical Service	
c. Telephone Service	
d. LPG or Natural Gas Service	
e. Solid Waste Disposal Service	
f. Cable Television Service	
g. Water Service	

For most uses, Washoe County Code, Chapter 110, Article 422, Water and Sewer Resource Requirements, requires the dedication of water rights to Washoe County. Please indicate the type and quantity of water rights you have available should dedication be required.

h. Permit #	acre-feet per year	
i. Certificate #	acre-feet per year	
j. Surface Claim #	acre-feet per year	
k. Other #	acre-feet per year	

Title of those rights (as filed with the State Engineer in the Division of Water Resources of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources).

10. Community Services (provided and nearest facility):

a. Fire Station	
b. Health Care Facility	
c. Elementary School	
d. Middle School	
e. High School	
f. Parks	
g. Library	
h. Citifare Bus Stop	

Special Use Permit Application for Grading Supplemental Information

(All required information may be separately attached)

- 1. What is the purpose of the grading?
- 2. How many cubic yards of material are you proposing to excavate on site?
- 3. How many square feet of surface of the property are you disturbing?
- 4. How many cubic yards of material are you exporting or importing? If none, how are you managing to balance the work on-site?
- 5. Is it possible to develop your property without surpassing the grading thresholds requiring a Special Use Permit? (Explain fully your answer.)
- 6. Has any portion of the grading shown on the plan been done previously? (If yes, explain the circumstances, the year the work was done, and who completed the work.)
- 7. Have you shown all areas on your site plan that are proposed to be disturbed by grading? (If no, explain your answer.)

- 8. Can the disturbed area be seen from off-site? If yes, from which directions and which properties or roadways?
- 9. Could neighboring properties also be served by the proposed access/grading requested (i.e. if you are creating a driveway, would it be used for access to additional neighboring properties)?
- 10. What is the slope (horizontal/vertical) of the cut and fill areas proposed to be? What methods will be used to prevent erosion until the revegetation is established?
- 11. Are you planning any berms?

	Yes	No	If yes, how tall is the berm at its highest?
--	-----	----	--

- 12. If your property slopes and you are leveling a pad for a building, are retaining walls going to be required? If so, how high will the walls be and what is their construction (i.e. rockery, concrete, timber, manufactured block)?
- 13. What are you proposing for visual mitigation of the work?
- 14. Will the grading proposed require removal of any trees? If so, what species, how many and of what size?
- 15. What type of revegetation seed mix are you planning to use and how many pounds per acre do you intend to broadcast? Will you use mulch and, if so, what type?

- 16. How are you providing temporary irrigation to the disturbed area?
- 17. Have you reviewed the revegetation plan with the Washoe Storey Conservation District? If yes, have you incorporated their suggestions?
- 18. Are there any restrictive covenants, recorded conditions, or deed restrictions (CC&Rs) that may prohibit the requested grading?

Yes No If yes, please attach a copy.

Special Use Permit Application for Stables Supplemental Information

Not Applicable. The proposed development is only for horses owned by the property owner and no additional horses from others will be boarded.

- 1. What is the maximum number of horses to be boarded, both within stables and pastured?
- 2. What is the maximum number of horses owned/maintained by the owner/operator of the project, both within stables and pastured?
- 3. List any ancillary or additional uses proposed (e.g., tack and saddle sales, feed sales, veterinary services, etc.). Only those items that are requested may be permitted.
- 4. If additional activities are proposed, including training, events, competition, trail rides, fox hunts, breaking, roping, etc., only those items that are requested may be permitted. Clearly describe the number of each of the above activities which may occur, how many times per year and the number of expected participants for each activity.
- 5. What currently developed portions of the property or existing structures are going to be used with this permit?
- 6. To what uses (e.g., restrooms, offices, managers living quarters, stable area, feed storage, etc.) will the barn be put and will the entire structure be allocated to those uses? (Provide floor plans with dimensions).
- 7. Where are the living quarters for the operators of the stables and where will employees reside?

Washoe County Planning and Building SPECIAL USE PERMITS APPLICATION STABLES SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION December 2018



15. Please describe operational parameters and/or voluntary conditions of approval to be imposed on the administrative permit to address community impacts.

	What types of landscaping (e.g. shrubs, trees, fencing, painting scheme, etc.) are proposed? (Plea indicate location on site plan.)
ļ	
	What type of signs and lighting will be provided? On a separate sheet, show a depiction (heig width, construction materials, colors, illumination methods, lighting intensity, base landscaping, et
	of each sign and the typical lighting standards. (Please indicate location of signs and lights on splan.)
	Are there any restrictive covenants, recorded conditions, or deed restrictions (CC&Rs) that apply
	the area subject to the administrative permit request? (If so, please attach a copy.)
	Community Sewer
	Community Water
	Ves No

Property Owner Affidavit

Applicant Name: Christopher Feulner

The receipt of this application at the time of submittal does not guarantee the application complies with all requirements of the Washoe County Development Code, the Washoe County Master Plan or the applicable area plan, the applicable regulatory zoning, or that the application is deemed complete and will be processed.

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF WASHOE

Christopher Fruher (please print name)

being duly sworn, depose and say that I am the owner* of the property or properties involved in this application as listed below and that the foregoing statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of Planning and Building.

(A separate Affidavit must be provided by each property owner named in the title report.)

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 150 - 250 - 48 Printed Name Christopher Fresher State of Nevada Signed county of washee Address 770 Mays Blud #4943 Indine Villar, UV 89450 (Notary Stamp) PENNY STEINER Notary Public in and for said county and state lotary Public State of Nevada County of Washoe My commission expires: 12/29/ 7024 VPPT. NO. 21-8367-02 My App. Expires Dec. 29, 2024

*Owner refers to the following: (Please mark appropriate box.)

- 🕅 Owner
- Corporate Officer/Partner (Provide copy of record document indicating authority to sign.)
- Power of Attorney (Provide copy of Power of Attorney.)
- Owner Agent (Provide notarized letter from property owner giving legal authority to agent.)

6

- Property Agent (Provide copy of record document indicating authority to sign.)
- Letter from Government Agency with Stewardship

December 2018

Property Owner Affidavit

Applicant Name: Megan Feulner

The receipt of this application at the time of submittal does not guarantee the application complies with all requirements of the Washoe County Development Code, the Washoe County Master Plan or the applicable area plan, the applicable regulatory zoning, or that the application is deemed complete and will be processed.

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF WASHOE

Negan Fruher

State of Nevada

(please print name)

being duly sworn, depose and say that I am the owner* of the property or properties involved in this application as listed below and that the foregoing statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of Planning and Building.

(A separate Affidavit must be provided by each property owner named in the title report.)

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 150-250-49

Printed Name Magan Fruiner Signed county of washe Address 770 Mays Blud # 4943 Indine Village, NU 89450 Subscribed and sworn to before me this teb , 204. (Notary Stamp)



My commission expires: 12/29 / 2024

*Owner refers to the following: (Please mark appropriate box.)

Owner

4th day of

- Corporate Officer/Partner (Provide copy of record document indicating authority to sign.)
- Power of Attorney (Provide copy of Power of Attorney.)
- Owner Agent (Provide notarized letter from property owner giving legal authority to agent.)
- Property Agent (Provide copy of record document indicating authority to sign.)
- Letter from Government Agency with Stewardship



December 2018

PENNENNESTEINER

CouldparitWashoe PAPINO NO. 2368367-02 ANAP A DIDA BRODINES Dec. 29, 2024

oralpieublitatestate of Nevada

Washoe County Treasurer P.O. Box 30039, Reno, NV 89520-3039 ph: (775) 328-2510 fax: (775) 328-2500 Email: tax@washoecounty.us

Washoe County Treasurer Tammi Davis

> Account Detail Disclaimer Back to Account Detail Change of Address Print this Page ALERTS: If your real property taxes are CollectionCart delinquent, the search results displayed may Items Total Checkout View Collection Cart not reflect the correct 0 \$0.00 amount owing. Please contact our office for the current amount Pay Online due. No payment due for this account. For your convenience, online payment is available on this site. E-check payments are **Washoe County Parcel Information** accepted without a fee. Parcel ID Status Last Update However, a service fee does apply for 15025048 Active 2/7/2021 1:49:54 AM online credit card **Current Owner:** SITUS: payments. FEULNER, CHRISTOPHER A & MEGAN 0 MOUNTAIN RANCH RD See Payment WCTY NV Information for details. 770 MAYS BLVD 4943 **INCLINE VILLAGE, NV 89450** Geo CD: **Taxing District Pay By Check** 4000 Please make checks payable to: WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER Tax Bill (Click on desired tax year for due dates and further details) Mailing Address: P.O. Box 30039 Reno, NV 89520-3039 Tax Year Net Tax Total Paid Penalty/Fees Interest Balance Due Overnight Address: 1001 E. Ninth St., Ste D140 Reno, NV 89512-2845 \$710.56 \$710.56 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 2020 \$676.72 \$676.72 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 2019 \$645.74 \$645.74 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 2018 \$619.71 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$619.71 2017 \$0.00 \$604.42 \$604.42 \$0.00 \$0.00 📙 Payment Information 2016 \$0.00 Total **Special Assessment** District **Installment** Date Information **Assessment Information**

Section 2

Project Narrative

- 1. Introduction
- 2. **Previous Submittals**
- 3. Washoe County Master Plan and Zoning
- 4. Site Analysis
- 5. Site Design
- 6. Project Ingress / Egress and Traffic
- 7. Site Fenestration
- 8. Signage
- 9. Domestic Water Service
- 10. Sanitary Sewerage
- 11. Gas
- 12. Electric, Telephone and Cable Television
- 13. Fencing
- 14. Landscaping
- 15. Phasing
- 16. Property Development Standards
- 17. Phasing
- 18. Special Use Permit Findings

Introduction

The proposed Feulner Residence is to be a single family small lot development on one lot with associative horse barn, horse arena, shop and horse pasture area. The project is located in a suburban infill area with a surrounding home to the north, developed volunteer fire department building to the east, an undeveloped single family parcel to the west and Whites Creek to the south. The project address is currently "0 Mt. Ranch Road", more specifically known as Washoe County Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 150-250-48.

The site will be used as a private equestrian property to be utilized by the land owner only and will not board horses from others, nor hold public equestrian events.

A concurrent application for abandonment is submitted in parallel with this application for Special Use Permit (SUP). The proposed abandonment is to remove a redundant / obsolete access and public utility easement for properties to the north. A new public utility easement (PUE) will be proposed.

The site is currently vacant with some site improvements performed by a previous owner of which the improvements were not appropriately permitted (see below).

Previous Submittals

Previous owners of the property had submitted an application for a Special Use Permit for grading which was approved under Permit Number SB14-010 with conditions (see Section 4). A building permit for grading was subsequently initiated under Grading Permit Number 14-0298 and was under project review by Washoe County and applicable agencies. The previous owner did not complete the application nor obtain a proper grading permit; however, there was site construction performed that included mass grading, installation of rockery walls and some drainage swales.

Washoe County Master Plan and Zoning

The site current master plan designation is Rural Residential (RR) which conforms with the current zoning designation of High Density Rural (HDR). Refer to Section 4 for master plan and zoning map designations and surrounding areas / properties. The proposed development also conforms to the Timberline Wildland Transition Suburban Character Management Area SW1.5 (SCMA). Master Plan and Zoning for adjacent / abutting properties are as follows:

North: Master Planned RR and Zoned HDR – *Currently developed as a single family residence* South: Master Planned RR and Zoned 86% HDR / 14% General Rural (GR) for APN 150-501-03 and Zoned HDR 17% / 83% GR for APN 150-492-20 *Both parcels are undeveloped; Parcel 150-492-20 is part of the Whites Creek Open Space* East:Master Planned RR and Zoned HDR - Currently developed as Existing
TMFPD Volunteer Fire Garage Facility) Refer to Section 4 for site photosWest:Master Planned RR and Zoned HDR - Currently undeveloped

Site Analysis

The site slopes from west to east with an elevation drop of approximately twenty feet (5500 to 5480) and is relatively flat due to previous site grading with rockery retaining walls along the western and eastern portions of the site, with a relatively continuous slope of approximately 4 percent between the separate walls.

The site drains in a pattern of west to east and is predominately via overland flow. There are no existing trees on the site as terrain is fan remnants with sagebrush covering.

Site Design

The site has been designed meeting HDR development standards and Low Impact Design (LID). The site has two means of access: a primary driveway cut at the southwest corner of the site off of Mountain Ranch Road and a secondary (gated) driveway entrance at the midpoint of the southern boundary along Mountain Ranch Road. Use of rockery wall retaining infrastructure is incorporated to allow for relatively flat areas to accommodate a horse arena and horse pasture areas.

Project Ingress / Egress and Traffic

The property will have direct access from Mountain Ranch Road which is a private road that transgresses the southern portion of the site in an east-west direction. The existing roadway improvements of Mountain Ranch Road currently do not fall completely within the 33' Roadway and PUE easement; the current road encroaches into the property further to the north and is known to follow a prescriptive rights alignment. Mountain Ranch Road has direct access to the Mount Rose Highway (SR 431) on the eastern end and connection to the Mount Rose Highway to the west via a connection with Callahan Road. A third, non-primary access to the site is via Crested Wheat Way which connects to both to the Saddlehorn Community to the north and additionally to Arrowcreek Parkway. Crested Wheat way is a private, non-paved road.

Site Fenestration

The site has been designed to meet the minimum standards for a single family development within an HDR zoning designation. Consistent with these standards, a 30-foot front yard setback, 15-foot side yard setback and 30-foot rear yard setback are used to site single family residence, shop (over 12' in height) and horse barn (over 12' in height). In addition, the siting of the horse barn is also necessitated to be out of the Whites Creek Sensitive Stream Zone (Washoe County Article 418: Significant Hydrologic Resources). See drawings for Stream

Zone Delineations. Example elevations of the single family home and horse barn architecture are provided in Section 4.

Signage

The project will include an address marker on the single family home and potentially an address inscribed / etched on a site boulder.

Domestic Water Service

Water service will be provided by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA). Water rights have already been dedicated and facility fees have already been paid. An existing dual meter water connection service located along the western boundary line.

Sanitary Sewerage

There currently is no public sanitary sewer collection system that is available to serve the site. A septic system that will meet all local, state and federal requirements will be submitted as part of the final building plans.

Gas

There currently is no public gas available to the site; therefore a propane system may be used.

Electric, Telephone and Cable Television

The dry utilities are proposed to be serviced by an existing power pole located near the north east corner of the site. It is anticipated that the utilities will be served via overhead infrastructure and thus will utilize power poles located on the site based on NV Energy design standards. Electric service will be provided by NV Energy; telephone will be provided by Nevada Bell (AT&T) and cable will be provided by Charter / Spectrum.

Fencing

A wood perimeter fence meeting code height and material standards is proposed for the site. The secondary entrance at the middle of the site frontage along Mountain Ranch Road will be gated.

Landscaping

The applicant will landscape the site using current standard practices for a rural / equestrian property.

Phasing

The overall site grading and drainage is planned to be done all during one phase as well as the site septic system. The single family home, shop, horse barn and outdoor arena are anticipated to be completed all during one phase but will be dictated by financing. All site BMPs for drainage and air quality control will be installed and managed during the first phase.

Property Development Standards

SITE ZONING CLASSIFICATION:

SOUTHWEST TRUCKEE MEADOWS AREA PLAN (TIMBERLINE WILDLAND TRANSITION SCMA) HIGH DENSITY RURAL (HDR) - BASE ZONING RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) - MASTER PLAN

MINIMUM LOT SIZE REQUIREMENT: 2 ACRES

TOTAL SITE AREA:

107,854 SQUARE FEET (2.48 ACRES ±)

GROSS DENSITY:

0.4 DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE 1 DWELLING UNIT PROPOSED

ACCESSORY USES:

PERSONAL SHOP (OVER 12' FEET IN HEIGHT) MEETS REAR / SIDE YARD SETBACKS HORSE BARN (PERSONAL USE ONLY; NO BOARDING) OPEN AREA HORSE ARENA (PERSONAL USE ONLY)

SETBACKS:

FRONT YARD:	THIRTY FEET (30')
REAR YARD:	THIRTY FEET (30')
SIDE YARD:	FIFTEEN FEET (15')

MAXIMUM HEIGHT:

THIRTY FIVE FEET (35')

Special Use Permit Findings and Responses

Finding 1: <u>Consistency</u>. The proposed use is consistent with the action programs, policies, standards and maps of the Master Plan and the applicable area plan;

Response: The proposed grading does not conflict with any of the goals of the Washoe County Master Plan, the Southwest Truckee Meadows Area Plan and the Timberline Wildland Transition Suburban Character Management Area SW1.5 (SCMA).

Finding 2: <u>Improvements</u>. Adequate utilities, roadway improvements, sanitation, water supply, drainage, and other necessary facilities have been provided, the proposed improvements are properly related to existing and proposed roadways, and an adequate public facilities determination has been made in accordance with Division Seven;

Response: The site has adequate utilities to support the development. A current domestic water service meter is located along the western boundary line and the water purveyor is the Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA). Sanitary sewer management will be via a septic system as there is currently no public sanitary system adjacent or abutting the site. Propane will be utilized for gas and an adjacent power pole in the northeast corner of the site will be used for electricity, telephone and cable. Drainage infrastructure perpetuates the existing and proposed flows to Whites Creek and Mountain Ranch Road is utilized for vehicular ingress / egress to the site.

Finding 3: <u>Site Suitability</u>. The site is physically suitable for the type of development and for the intensity of development;

Response: The proposed grading is suitable and appropriate for the development of the single family residential home with three car garage, detached shop, horse barn, horse arena and pasture area.

Finding 4: Issuance Not Detrimental. Issuance of the permit will not be significantly detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare; injurious to the property or improvements of adjacent properties; or detrimental to the character of the surrounding area; and

Response: The applicant is amenable to reviewing and agreeing to conditions, when deemed appropriate, that address mitigation and stabilization measures so that the project will not be developed with detriment.

Finding 5: Effect on a Military Installation. Issuance of the permit will not have a detrimental effect on the location, purpose or mission of the military installation.

Response: There are no Military Installations within close proximity to the subject property.

Section 3

Exhibits and Reduced Maps

- 1. Vicinity Map
- 2. Location Map
- 3. Zoning Map
- 4. Master Plan Map
- 5. Assessor Parcel Map
- 6. Architectural Rendering Samples
- 7. Site Photos
- 8. Reduced Tentative Map Sheets



VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE



LOCATION MAP



February 8, 2021



WASHOE COUNTY ZONING DESIGNATION



February 8, 2021



WASHOE COUNTY MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION





RESIDENCE RENDERING VIEW 1



RESIDENCE RENDERING VIEW 2



RESIDENCE RENDERING VIEW 3



FLOOR PLAN RESIDENCE



SAMPLE ARCHITECTURAL RENDERING BARN



36' x 36' Horse Barn Layout





LOOKING EAST FROM SITE ENTRANCE (TMFPD VOLUNTEER FIRE HOUSE IN BACKGROUND)

LOOKING SOUTHEAST FROM NWC (TMFPD VOLUNTEER FIRE HOUSE IN BACKGROUND)





LOOKING WEST FROM SITE ENTRANCE

LOOKING NORTH ALONG WESTERN ROCKERY WALLS




LOOKING NORTH FROM SITE ENTRANCE

LOOKING EAST FROM NORTHEAST CORNER CRESTED WHEAT WAY & TMFPD VOLUNTEER FIRE HOUSE

SPECIAL USE PERMIT FEULNER RESIDENCE GRADING

BASIS OF BEARINGS

THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THE SURVEY USED IN THIS SUBMITTAL IS THE NEVADA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST ZONE GRID, NAD 83 /94, AS ALSO SHOWN ON WASHOE COUNTY PARCEL MAP 4615, RECORDED AUGUST 26, 2006,

BASIS OF ELEVATIONS AND EXISTING CONDITIONS

THE ELEVATION DATA AND EXISTING CONDITIONS DEPICTED IN THESE DRAWINGS ARE FROM A COMPLATION OF AFRIAL PHOTOGRAPHS FROM THE WASHOE COUNTY AND CITY OF RENO GIS MAPPING AND 2-F00T CONTOUR DATA FROM 2016 FROM THE CITY OF RENO.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL 2 OF WASHOE COUNTY PARCEL MAP 4615, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2006. ALL EASEMENTS PER THE MAP ARE VALID, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE NORTHERN THIRTY THREE (33) ROADWAY AND PUE EASEMENT WHICH HAS BEEN ABANDONED PER WASHOE COUNTY RECORDER'S DOCUMENT NUMBER 4538434, RECORDED DECEMBER 3 2015.



PROJECT VICINITY



-



PROJECT LOCATION

PROJECT APPLICANT

CHRISTOPHER AND MEGAN FEULNER PO BOX 4943 INCLINE VILLAGE, NV 89450 (530) 559-1497 (916) 849-7077

PROPERTY OWNERSHIP

WASHOE COUNTY APN 150-250-48 CHRISTOPHER AND MEGAN FEULNER PO BOX 4943 INCLINE YULLAGE, NV 89450 (530) 559-1497 (916) 849-7077

SHEET INDEX

1 OF 6	TITLE SHEET
2 OF 6	EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN
3 OF 6	SITE PLAN
4 OF 6	GRADING PLAN
5 OF 6	UTILITY PLAN
6 OF 6	SITE CROSS-SECTIONS

CONCURRENT SUBMITTAL

WASHOE COUNTY ABANDONMENT APPLICAT-ON WA21-__

APPLICATION FOR ABANDONMENT OF THIRTY-THREE (33) ROADWAY& PUE ALONG EASTERN SIDE OF THE PROPERTY.



















SHEET 5 OF 6 UTILITY PLAN



316 CALIFORNIA AVENUE, #154 (775) 657-0097 RENO, NV 89509 BRIAN@MLSDRENO.COM MLSDRENO.COM



Section 4

Reports and Supporting Information

- 1. Preliminary Title Reports
- 2. Copy of Deed
- 3. Preliminary Hydrology / Drainage Report
- 4. Copy of Geotechnical Report
- 5. Copy of Previous Conditions of Approval for SB14-010 (SUP Application for Grading)

APN: 150-250-48 **R.P.T.T.:** \$1,414.50 Escrow No.: 20011181-CD When Recorded Return To: Christopher Allen Feulner and Megan Feulner 770 Mays Blvd #4943 Incline Village, NV 89450

DOC #5120806

12/23/2020 12:58:36 PM Electronic Recording Requested By FIRST CENTENNIAL - RENO (MAIN OF Washoe County Recorder Kalie M. Work Fee: \$43.00 RPTT: \$1414.50 Page 1 of 2

Mail Tax Statements to: Christopher Allen Feulner and Megan Feulner 770 Mays Blvd #4943 Incline Village, NV 89450

SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER'S USE

GRANT, BARGAIN, SALE DEED

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

Glenn W. Burnham and Evelyn Pei Lin Chiang, husband and wife, as joint tenants with right of survivorship

do(es) hereby Grant, Bargain, Sell and Convey to

Christopher Allen Feulner and Megan Feulner, husband and wife, as joint tenants with right of survivorship

all that real property situated in the City of Reno, County of Washoe , State of Nevada, described as follows:

Parcel 2 of Parcel Map No. 4615, according to the map thereof, filed in the office of the County Recorder of Washoe County, State of Nevada, on August 28, 2006, as File No. 3431250.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all coal, oil, gas and other mineral deposits together with the right to prospect for, mine and remove the same according to the provisions of the Act of Congress approved June 1, 1938 as reserved in Patent recorded December 19, 1961, in Book G, Page 115, as Document No. 349953, Patent Records.

Assessors Parcel No.: 150-250-48

Together with all and singular tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining.

5120806 Page 2 of 2 - 12/23/2020 12:58:36 PM

Page 2 of the Grant, Bargain, Sale Deed (signature page).

Escrow No.: 20011181-CD

Dated this <u>3</u> day of <u>December</u>, 2020.

Glenn W. Burnham

Evelyn Pei Lin Chiang

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF WASH

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this 3 day of becenvbec, 200 by Glenn W. Burnham and Evelyn Pei Lin Chiang.

Notary Public





300 Western Road, #3, Reno, NV 89506 • (775) 852-7475 FAX (775) 852-7488 April 4, 2014 27381-20N

Mr. Chris Amundson 3477 Vancouver Road Reno, Nevada 89511

> Geotechnical Investigation New Residence and Barn 00 Mt. Ranch Road Washoe County, Nevada

—Docusigned by: Glunn W. Burnham —781F872287F1427...

DocuSigned by:

Introduction

This report presents the results of our geotechnical investigation for the proposed new residential structure and detached barn (agricultural building) to be located at 00 Mt. Ranch Road in Washoe County, Nevada. We anticipate that the buildings will be constructed of wood framing with joist supported and/or slab-on-grade floors. There will be about 5 to 6 feet of cut and about 8 feet of fill required to attain the building's to finish floor elevations.

Our scope of work was to conduct a subsurface investigation with testing and analysis to determine site conditions and the engineering properties of the underlying soils and any rock. We are to provide conclusions and recommendations concerning geologic hazards and seismic design, site preparation and grading, design criteria for foundations and retaining walls, including estimates of settlement and support of interior and exterior flatwork. Recommendations for structural fill and for drainage are also presented.

Percolation testing was performed during this investigation and the results are to be used as design input for the new individual on-site sewage disposal (septic) system. The design required will be for a standard septic system. The system components (tank capacity, length and depth of absorption fields, etc.) will be determined by the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) based on our recommended percolation design rate given in this report.

Site, Soil and Seismic Conditions

The site is covered with low grass and sagebrush and lies on the north side of Mt. Ranch Road. The surrounding property is undeveloped. The property slopes gently to the east-northeast.

We explored the subsurface conditions by sampling and logging two backhoe excavated test pits to depths of about 5.5 and 13 feet below the existing ground surface. Test Pit 1 was in the north-western portion of the site and Test Pit 2 was in the southeastern portion of the site in the vicinity of the planned septic system. The percolation test was performed in this pit at about the 2 foot and 4 foot depths. The materials encountered were logged and representative samples were obtained for laboratory classification testing.

The soils encountered consisted of dark brown, medium dense, silty sand with abundant gravel and some very large boulders throughout the depths explored. At the time of our exploration (April 2014), no free ground water was encountered in either test pit. Mr. Chris Amundson Project: 00 Mt. Ranch Road Project No: 27381-20N April 4, 2014 - Page 2



The subject property is located within the extreme west central portion of the Basin and Range physiographic province. The present topography of the site is derived from the deposit known as Donner Lake Outwash (Qdm). This deposit consists sand, silt, and boulders deposited by glacial outwash (Mt Rose NE Quadrangle Geologic Map, Bonham and Rogers, 1983; Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology).

No earthquake faults transect the subject property. However, there is a regional potential for moderate to large magnitude earthquakes in the mid and western portions of Nevada. Washoe County currently requires the use of the site characterization criteria found in the 2012 International Building Code (IBC) for design. The seismic design criteria is found in Chapter 16, Section 1613 of the 2012 IBC and the USGS website. The IBC requires that the Site Class be determined by soil and rock parameters described in Table 1613.3.2. The Site Class defaults to "D" without confirming soil and rock data to a depth of 100 feet below the ground surface. The maximum considered earthquake ground motion spectral accelerations for short periods and for one second periods are given on figures in the code. These values are mapped in contour format and estimated site values are determined by interpolation of the nearest contours. However, using the site latitude and longitude as input, the USGS website provides a much more accurate site specific acceleration values along with the respective site coefficients and design spectral response acceleration parameters in their Design Maps Summary Report. Based on this research, the site specific geotechnical design criteria for the subject property is presented below:

TABLE 1 - 2012 IBC SEISMIC DESIGN CRITERIA	
Spectral Response at Short Periods, S _s (USGS)	2.25
Spectral Response at 1-Second Period, S₁ (USGS)	0.79
Site Class (Subsection 1613.3.2)	D
Site Coefficient F _a (USGS)	1.00
Site Coefficient F, (USGS)	1.50
Design Spectral Response Acceleration, Short Periods, SD _s =2/3 x Fa x Ss (USGS)	1.50
Design Spectral Response Acceleration, 1-Second Period, $SD_1 = 2/3 \times Fv \times S_1$ (USGS)	0.79

C. Flooding

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (Map Number 32031C3245G; March 16, 2009) indicates that the development area is within Flood Hazard Zone X. Zone X is designated as those areas of the 0.2% annual chance flood.

Conclusions

Based upon the results of our investigation we conclude that, from a geotechnical engineering standpoint, the site can be developed essentially as planned. We believe that in general, conventional site grading techniques and building foundation, slab and exterior flatwork construction can be used for the development. The structure and flatwork can be supported on firm compacted native soil or imported structural fill provided the grading is performed as recommended in subsequent sections of this report.

Mr. Chris Amundson Project: 00 Mt. Ranch Road Project No: 27381-20N April 4, 2014 - Page 3



We anticipate that for shallow foundations designed and constructed in accordance with our recommendations, the post construction differential settlement will be on the order of 1/2 to 3/4 inch.

The percolation test results were within a satisfactory range for design of the required standard septic system. The tests results were 60 minutes per inch (mpi) at 2 feet and 40 mpi at the 4 feet level. We recommend that the new septic system be designed based on the percolation rate of 60 mpi. The test pit was 13 feet deep with no free ground water encountered; therefore, a trench depth up to 9 feet deep can be used.

Recommendations

Initially, the areas to be developed, should be cleared of any surface vegetation and debris. These materials should be removed from the site. All stripped soil surfaces in the new building area should be moisture conditioned and compacted to at least 90 percent relative compaction prior to any fill placement of installation of structural components.

Only select structural materials should be used for fill and backfill. Structural materials imported to the site should be free of organic and other deleterious matter, have low to negligible expansion potential and conform in general to the following requirements:

Sieve Size	Percent Passing (by dry weight)
6 inch	100
3/4 Inch	70 - 100
No. 4	50 - 100
No. 200	10 - 35

Liquid Limit = 35 maximum Plasticity Index = 15 maximum

We anticipate that generally based on laboratory testing, the on-site, granular materials generated by any excavation will be suitable for use as structural fill as available from planned cuts. Some screening of native soil will be needed to remove large cobbles and boulders. All fill materials should be approved by the geotechnical engineer prior to use. On site or imported structural fill and backfill should be spread in 8- to 10-inch, moisture conditioned, loose lifts and compacted to at least 90 percent relative compaction.

Conventional spread foundations can be supported on surface compacted native soils or structural fill as previously discussed. To provide adequate confinement and frost protection, footings should bottom at least 24 inches below lowest adjacent exterior grade. Footings can be designed to impose dead plus long-term live load bearing pressures of no greater than 2,700 pounds per square foot. These pressures can be increased by one-third for consideration of all live loads including wind or seismic.

Resistance to lateral loads can be obtained from passive earth pressures and soil friction. We recommend the following design criteria:

Mr. Chris Amundson Project: 00 Mt. Ranch Road Project No: 27381-20N April 4, 2014 - Page 4



Passive Earth Resistance - 350 pounds per cubic foot, equivalent fluid

Soil Friction Factor - 0.40

Interior floor slabs can be supported on firm, non-expansive, native soils and approved compacted fill. Floor slabs should be underlain by at least six inches of free draining crushed rock base or aggregate base. Exterior concrete flatwork such as curbs, sidewalks and patios supported on firm, non-expansive, native soils or structural fill should be underlain by at least 6 inches of aggregate base. To provide uniform slab section support, all subgrade surfaces (upper six inches) should be scarified, moisture conditioned, and compacted to at least 90 percent relative compaction. The resulting surface should be smooth, firm and non-yielding. Aggregate base material used in any area should be compacted to at least 95 percent relative compaction.

Concrete mix proportions and construction techniques, including the addition of water and improper curing, can adversely affect the finished quality of the concrete and result in cracking and spalling of the slabs and other flatwork. We recommend that all placement and curing be performed in accordance with procedures outlined by the American Concrete Institute (ACI). Special consideration should be given to concrete placed and cured during hot or cold weather conditions. Proper control joints and reinforcing should be provided where applicable to minimize any cracking resulting from shrinkage.

Backfilling around building walls needed to attain final grade in non structural areas should be moisture conditioned, placed in 12 inch maximum thickness lifts, and be compacted to at least 85 percent minimum relative compaction. Field density testing of the backfill operations should be performed to ensure compaction is being achieved.

The ground surface around the structure should be permanently sloped to drain away from the building so that water is not allowed to pond against perimeter walls. The finish grading around the structure should be in accordance with current building code requirements and should be verified by the Civil Engineer. In addition to adequate surface drainage, a system of roof gutters and downspouts is recommended to collect roof drainage and direct it away from the walls and foundations. Foundation drainage is also recommended. Drains along foundations should be graded to drain to a collection point, with a pipe provided to daylight to an exterior discharge area.

Site drainage should also be designed to restrict infiltration from entering any flatwork sections. Periodic crack sealing and surface sealing should be implemented to increase service life of the concrete slabs and any pavements.

Additional Geotechnical Engineering and Inspection Services

The conclusions and recommendations presented in this report are based on the results of current field exploration and our understanding of the proposed development. This report has been prepared in accordance with current, generally accepted, geotechnical engineering standards of practice for the limited scope of work authorized. It is believed that the soil information compiled presents an accurate representation of the soil conditions and variations to be expected within the areas studied. However, there is a possibility that conditions other than those found in this investigation exist on-site. In the event that unanticipated conditions are encountered during construction, we should be given budget allowances to evaluate the condition(s) and make timely new recommendations or modify our existing report to satisfy the project needs.

NORTECH

Mr. Chris Amundson Project: 00 Mt. Ranch Road Project No: 27381-20N April 4, 2014 - Page 5

Sufficient field observation and construction review should also be provided during all phases of earthwork construction. We should review the final plans and specifications for conformance with the intent of our recommendations. Prior to construction, a pre-job conference should be scheduled to include, but not be limited to, the Owner, Architect, Civil Engineer, General Contractor, Earthwork and Materials Sub-Contractors, Building Official and Geotechnical Engineer. The conference will allow all parties to review the project plans and specifications and recommendations presented in this report and discuss applicable material quality requirements and answer questions regarding the planned construction.

During construction, we should provide on-site observations, together with field and laboratory testing of the site preparation and grading, excavation, any over-excavation, fill placement, foundation and flatwork installation and paving operations. These observations and tests would allow us to verify that the soil conditions are as anticipated and that the Contractor's work is in conformance with the plans and specifications.

In addition, Nortech can provide any Engineer of Record (EOR) inspection and all IBC 1704 Special Inspection services such as masonry, concrete, steel (welding, bolting, dry pack, etc.), fireproofing and any other construction or installations requiring such services. We have ICC certified inspectors on staff and would be pleased to submit a proposal for any special inspection services prior to construction.

We trust this provides the information needed; however, if you have any questions regarding this report, please contact our office.

Yours very truly,

NORTECH Geotechnical/Civil Consultants, Ltd.



Nicholas S. Vestbie Civil Engineer - 5173

NSV/IIm

Enclosures: Plate 1: Site and Exploration Plan Plate 2: Logs of Test Pit 1 and Test pit 2 Plate 3: Percolation Test Pit Log 1A Plate 4: Percolation Test Pit Log 1B Plate 5: Soil Classification Chart & Key to Test Data Plate 6: Sieve Analysis DocuSign Envelope ID: DA3F6DFD-A5B6-4866-BC5A-1E3C7960115E



DocuSign Envelope ID: DA3F6DFD-A5B6-4866-BC5A-1E3C7960115E

TEST PIT NO:: 1 SET UP: 4-2-14 TEST NO:: A RUN: 4-3-14 RUN:: 4-3-14 RUN: 4-3-14 SOL TESTED: Brown Sity Sand w/ Gravel (SM) FIELD TECH: K. Seegmiller SOL TESTED: Brown Sity Sand w/ Gravel (SM) Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Percolation RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PHT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE Gepth (feet) 10 10 5 10 10 5 10 10 5 10 10 15 10 10 15 10 10 16 10 10 17 10 10 16 10 10 17 10 10							
ILDIT NO 6" Wide X 12" Deep FIEL TECH K. Seegmiller DMKENSIONS: 6" Wide X 12" Deep FIELD TECH: K. Seegmiller SOIL TESTED: Brown Silly Sand w/ Gravel (SM) LOGG (hours: minutes) MEASURED DROP (Inches) REMARKS 0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Pre-sock, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 1:90 PERCOLATION RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch 1:91 1:91 No Free Ground Water Encountered	TEST PIT NO.: _1				SET UP:	4-2-14	
Brown Silty Sund w/ Gravel (SM) LOGG TIME (hours: minutes) MEASURED DROP (inches) REMARKS 0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 0 0:10 1.25 Pre-soak, IAW 090.075 0 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 2 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 1 0:90 Fercolation RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch 1 10 Image:	TEST NO.: _A				RUN:	4-3-14	
LOG TIME (hours:minutes) MEASURED DROP (inches) REMARKS 0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 0:10 1.25 Pre-soak, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 Intervel terminate, IAW 090.075 No Free 0:90 Intervel tervel terv	DIMENSIONS:6" W	lide X 12" Deep			FIELD TECH:	K. Seegmiller	
0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 0:10 1.25 Pre-soak, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 Test Percolation RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch 10 10 10 No Free Ground Water Encountered 15 <td>SOIL TESTED: Brow</td> <td>n Silty Sand w/</td> <td><u>Gravel</u> (SM)</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	SOIL TESTED: Brow	n Silty Sand w/	<u>Gravel</u> (SM)				
0:00 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 0:10 1.25 Pre-soak, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 Test Percolation RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch 10 10 10 No Free Ground Water Encountered 15 <td></td> <td></td> <td>L</td> <td>)(</td> <td>G</td> <td></td> <td></td>			L) (G		
0:10 1.25 Pre-sodk, IAW 090.075 0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Image: state s	TIME (hours: minutes)	MEASURED (inche	DROP s)		REN	IARKS	
0:00 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 Terminate, IAW 090.075 Percolation RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch 0:91 Depth TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet Pick of the state of the s	0:00	0.00		lr	nitial Water Added	, IAW 090.060	
0:30 0.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 0:60 0.50 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 0:90 0.50 PERCOLATION RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 10 11 10 15 10 15 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 <td< td=""><td>0:10</td><td>1.25</td><td></td><td>Р</td><td>re-soak, IAW 090</td><td>0.075</td><td></td></td<>	0:10	1.25		Р	re-soak, IAW 090	0.075	
0:60 0.50 0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 PERCOLATION RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 10 10 10 10 10 11 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	0:00	0.00		A	djust Water level	to 6", IAW 090.070	
0:90 0.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 PERCOLATION RATE: 60 Minutes Per Inch DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) BROWN SILTY SAND (SM) See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 15 No Free Ground Water Encountered Job # 2738-20N PERCOLATION TEST RECORD WAPP. Job # 2738-20N O0 MT. RANCH ROAD WASHOR COUNTY, NEVIDIA Job # 2738-20N O0 MT. RANCH ROAD WASHOR COUNTY, NEVIDIA	0: 30	0.50		P	Proceed, IAW 090.	075	
Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered No Free Ground Water Encountered Plate 3 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Plate 3 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Plate 1 fo	0:60	0.50					
DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 5 5 10 5 10 10 10 11 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 10 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	0:90	0.50		Т	erminate, IAW 090	0.075	
DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 5 5 10 10 10 10 10 10 11 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10					1		
DEPTH TEST PERFORMED: 2.0 Feet PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 5 5 10 5 10 10 10 11 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 10 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10							
PIT EVALUATED BY: N. VESTBIE depth (feet) 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 10 10 10 10 10 11 10 11 12 13 15 15 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 <tr< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>F</td><td>PERCO</td><td>DLATION RATE: 6</td><td>0 Minutes Per Inch</td><td></td></tr<>			F	PERCO	DLATION RATE: 6	0 Minutes Per Inch	
depth (feet) BROWN SILTY SAND (SM) See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Job # 2738-20N No Free Ground Water Encountered Job # 2738-20N PERCOLATION TEST RECORD Appr.			C	DEPTH	I TEST PERFORME	D: 2.0 Feet	
(feet) Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered No Free Ground Water Encountered 15 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location 10 Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location No Free Ground Water Encountered Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Image: See Site Plan Plate 1 for Pit Location Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plan Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plan Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 20 Image: See Site Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 2738-20N Image: See Site Plate 20 Image: See Site Plate 20 Image: See Site Plate 20			F	PIT E'	VALUATED BY: N.	VESTBIE	
NORTECH Job # 2730-20N Appr. <u>Jul /nsv</u> 00 MT. RANCH ROAD MASHOE COUNTY NEVADA 3		Plate 1	(feet) 5 10	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	With gravel and Io Free Ground W	boulders to 4' size ater Encountered	
NORTECH Appr. <u>Appr. 12 14</u> 00 MT. RANCH ROAD 3		Job) # <u>2738-20</u>	N	PERCOLATIO	N TEST RECORD	PLATE
		ECH Apr	or//n	5V			3

NAMES OF TAXABLE PARTY OF TAXABLE PARTY.	Contraction of the owner	and the state of the second state of the secon		
		SET UP:	4-2-14	
TEST PIT NO.: <u>1</u> TEST NO.: <u>B</u>			4-3-14	
DIMENSIONS: <u>6" Wide X 12" Deep</u>		FIELD TECH:	K. Seegmiller	
<u>d w/ Gravel (</u> SM	4)			
	.00	ĥ		
RED DROP iches)		RE	MARKS	
).00	In	itial Water Adde	d, IAW 090.060	
.50	Pı	re—soak, IAW 09	0.075	
).00	A	djust Water leve	l to 6", IAW 090.070	
.50	Р	roceed, IAW 090	.075	
.50				
1.50	Te	erminate, IAW 09	90.075	
	PERCO	LATION RATE:	40 Minutes Per Inch	
	DEPTH	TEST PERFORM	ED: 4.0 Feet	
	PIT E	ALUATED BY: N	I. VESTBIE	
depth (feet) 5 10 15		See Log on	Plate 3	
Job # 2738	-20N	PERCOLATIO	ON TEST RECORD	PLATE
Appr	/nsv			4
	<u>d w/ Gravel (Sk</u> <u>RED DROP</u> nches) 0.00 1.5	Deep d w/ Gravel (SM) LOC RED DROP nches) 0.00 I.50 0.00 A.50 Pr 0.00 A.50 Pr 0.00 A.50 Pr D.00 A.50 Pr D.50 Tele PERCO DEPTH PIT EV depth (feet) 10 15 10 15 Job # 2738-20N Appr. PM	RUN: RUN: Deep FIELD TECH: d w/_Gravel (SM) Initial Water Level RED_DROP RE nches) Pre-soak, IAW 09 0.00 Initial Water Adde 1.50 Pre-soak, IAW 09 0.00 Adjust Water level 1.50 Proceed, IAW 090 1.50 Terminate, IAW 05 1.50 PERCOLATION RATE: DEPTH TEST PERFORM PIT EVALUATED BY: N depth See Log on 10 See Log on 10 See Log on 10 PERCOLATION RATE: Job # 2738-20N PERCOLATION Appr. -vv//nsv 00 MI	RUN: 4-3-14 Deep FIELD TECH: K. Seegmiller d w/ Gravel (SM) Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 RED DROP REMARKS 0.00 Initial Water Added, IAW 090.060 1.50 Pre-soak, IAW 090.075 0.00 Adjust Water level to 6", IAW 090.070 1.50 Proceed, IAW 090.075 1.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 1.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 1.50 Terminate, IAW 090.075 1.50 See Log on Plate 3 10 See Log on Plate 3 10 See Log on Plate 3 10 PERCOLATION TEST RECORD 15 PERCOLATION TEST RECORD 15 OO MIT. RANCH ROAD

MAJOR DIVISIONS				TYPICAL NAMES	
SOILS 200 SIEVE	GRAVELS MORE THAN HALF	CLEAN GRAVELS WITH LITTLE OR	GW		WELL GRADED GRAVELS, GRAVEL-SAND MIXTURES
		NO FINES	GP	10. 10 11. 12.	POORLY GRADED GRAVELS, GRAVEL-SAND MIXTURES
ED HAN # :	COARSE FRACTION IS LARGER THAN NO. 4 SIEVE SIZE	GRAVELS WITH	GM		SILTY GRAVELS, POORLY GRADED GRAVEL-SAND
AIN		OVER 12% FINES	GC	× × ×	CLAYEY GRAVELS, POORLY GRADED GRAVEL SAND-CLAY MIXTURES
E GR/		CLEAN SANDS WITH LITTLE OR	SP	$ \begin{array}{cccc} $	POORLY GRADED SANDS, GRAVELLY SANDS
ARSE THAN HA	SANDS MORE THAN HALF	NO FINES	SW		WELL GRADED SANDS, GRAVELLY SANDS
COAF MORE T	COARSE FRACTION IS SMALLER THAN NO. 4 SIEVE SIZE	SANDS WITH	SM		SILTY SANDS, POORLY GRADED SAND-SILT MIXTURES
		OVER 12% FINES	SC		CLAYEY SANDS, POORLY GRADED SAND-CLAY MIXTURES
L S o sieve	SILTS AND CLAYS LIQUID LIMIT LESS THAN 50		ML		INORGANIC SILTS AND VERY FINE SANDS, ROCK FLOUR, SILTY OR CLAYEY FINE SANDS, OR CLAYEY SILTS WITH SLIGHT PLASTICITY
D SOIL THAN # 200			CL		INORGANIC CLAYS OF LOW TO MEDIUM PLASTICITY, GRAVELLY CLAYS, SANDY CLAYS, SILTY CLAYS, LEAN CLAYS
AINED smaller th			OL		ORGANIC CLAYS AND ORGANIC SILTY CLAYS OF LOW PLASTICITY
GR/ Half is	SILTS AND CLAY liquid limit greater than 50		мн		INORGANIC SILTS, MICACEOUS OR DIATOMACIOUS FINE SANDY OR SILTY SOILS, ELASTIC SILTS
			СН		INORGANIC CLAYS OR HIGH PLASTICITY, FAT CLAYS
FINE more than			ОН		ORGANIC CLAYS OF MEDIUM TO HIGH PLASTICITY, ORGANIC SILTS
HIGHLY ORGANIC SOILS			Pt		PEAT AND OTHER HIGHLY ORGANIC SOILS











300 Weslern Road, #3, Reno, NV 89506 . (775) 852-7475 FAX (775) 852-7488

PROPOSAL/WORK ORDER

We are pleased to acknowledge the following work assignment. Please sign below where indicated as a basis of mutual understanding as to the terms and/or conditions of the assignment.

NAME OF PROJECT	Amundson Property	APN NO.	150 250 48		
STREET LOCATION	00 Mt. Ranch Road Reno, Nevada	DATE	March 31, 2014		
CLIENT	Mr. Chris Admundson Amundson 3477 Vancoover Road Reno, Nevada 89511	PHONE FAX MOBILE E-MAIL	843-5076 Amund son rosting, com Chris@admundsonroofing.com		
AUTHORIZED BY:	Nicholas S. Vestbie				
SCOPE OF WORK	Geotechnical Investigation for the new building site to include excavating at least two back- hoe excavated test pits to about 6 to 8 feet deep (if possible) within the residential building and barn areas; logging and sampling the soils encountered; performing laboratory testing and analysis. Report preparation per the 2012 IRC to include description of subsurface conditions and soil properties, with recommendations for seismic design, site preparation and grading, allowable bearing capacity for foundations and retaining walls, lateral pressures and resistances, floor slab and exterior flatwork support, and drainage for the proposed new residence. Perform two percolation tests in one of the test pits which will be in the leach field area. Testing will be performed in accordance with the Washoe County regulations.				
FEES TO BE CHARGED	Geotechnical Investigation: \$1,500.00; Percolation Testing: \$500.00. Washoe County Inspection Fee to be paid by client 24 hrs. in advance of scheduling backhoe. Backhoe service supplied by client. Amount not to be exceeded without prior approval.				
	service supplied by client. Amount not to t	ne exceeded M			

TERMS & CONDITIONS:

- 1. Nortech Geotechnical/Civil Consultants, Ltd. (herein referred to as: Nortech) agrees to perform services and Client agrees to pay for and in consideration of the performance set forth in this Work Order.
- 2. <u>INVOICING</u> Invoice will be submitted at completion of work and is due upon presentation.

In general, payment will be required on work performed, therefore, payment is not contingent upon client's receipt of payment from other parties.

All invoices will be charged at the current fee schedule or per any formal proposal presented for professional and laboratory services prevailing at the time services are rendered.

A finance charge of one percent (1%) per month may be applied to the outstanding balance for accounts not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice.

3. <u>PAYMENT- Clients</u> without existing credit established with *Nortech*, will be required to pay for the work upon completion.

In the event payment is not made when due and it becomes necessary to commence suit to collect amounts due, client agrees to pay interest, collection company's fees, plus attorney's fees as the court may deem reasonable. It is our policy to place a mechanics lien against the property for the amount owed after 30 days from the date of billing. A \$100.00 lien fee will be added to the amount owed. *Nortech's* estimates of cost and schedule are for *Client* budgeting and planning purposes. Cost and schedule estimates are based upon information made available to *Nortech* at the time of Work Order generation. *Nortech* will endeavor to perform the services and accomplish the objectives within the estimated cost and schedule. *Nortech* will notify *Client* upon the discovery of changes or any other unforeseen circumstances that may impact cost and schedule.



- 12. NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT- The technical and pricing information contained in any proposal submitted by Nortech, as to this project, or in this Work Order or any addendum thereto, is to be considered confidential and proprietary, and shall not be released, disclosed, or otherwise made available to any third party without express written consent of Nortech. Any reports, documents or findings that are presented or delivered to Client in complete or partial fulfillment of this agreement shall become the property of Client. Client acknowledges that dissemination or reuse of Nortech, reports or data outside the scope and intent of the Work Order will be at Client's sole risk and liability.
- 13. <u>DELAYS</u>- If the performance of all or any part of the work is for an unreasonable period of time suspended, delayed, or interrupted by *Client* or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, or other causes beyond *Nortech's* control in the performance of this Work Order, *Nortech,* shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in cost and schedule.
- 14. <u>FORCE MAJEURE</u>- Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Work Order or any order hereunder to the extent that any delay or failure in the performance of its obligations (other than payment of money) results from any causes beyond its reasonable control and without its fault or negligence. Examples of such include, but are not limited to (1) Acts of God or the public enemy, (2) Acts of the Government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, (3) fires, (4) floods, (5) epidemics, (6) quarantine restrictions, (7) strikes, (8) embargoes, (9) earthquakes and (10) unusually severe weather.
- 15. <u>CONFORMANCE WITH LAW</u>- The validity, performance and construction of this Work Order shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada or California applicable to contracts.
- 16. <u>ASSIGNMENT</u>- There shall be no assignment of the rights or obligations in this agreement by either party without the written consent of the other party and any assignment absent such consent shall be null and void, and shall render the corresponding duties and obligations of the other party null and void.
- 17. <u>STANDARD OF SERVICES AND WARRANTY</u>- Services performed by *Nortech*, under this Work order shall be conducted in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions.
- 18. <u>PRIVILEGED TO TERMINATE</u>- Each party shall be privileged to terminate this agreement by giving the other party seven (7) days prior written notice thereof. In the event of termination by *Client*, *Nortech*, shall be paid for all services performed prior to the date of termination. In the event of termination by *Nortech*, *Nortech*, shall be paid for the value of services performed prior to the date of termination as a percentage completed of the total scope of work. In either event, *Client* will be liable for all costs through such termination, including all costs of settling and paying claims arising out of any subcontracts hereunder

I, the *Client/Owner* or *Client/Owner* representative, have read, understand and, hereby authorize *Nortech Geotechnical/-Civil Consultants, Limited*, to perform such services as set forth in this Work Order.

Nortech Geotechnical/Civil Consultants, Limited

BY:

Authorized Signature

Nicholas S. Vestbie, P.E.

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED

uthorizing Signature

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: Glenn W. Burnham 9E5F0BC224B847E. Jun-14-2017 Jun-13-2017

PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN TO OUR OFFICE FOR FINAL EXECUTION BY:

~ OR ~

POSTAL SERVICE:

ELECTRONICALLY TO:

Nortech Geotechnical/Civil Consultants, Ltd. 300 Western Road, #3 Reno, Nevada 89506 Lori@nortechltd.com







Board of Adjustment Action Order

Special Use Permit Number SB14-010

Decision:	Approved with Conditions
Decision Date:	June 5, 2014
Mailing/Filing Date:	June 17, 2014
Applicant/Property Owner:	Christina M Herbert Trust 3744 Vancouver Drive Reno, NV 89511
Assigned Planner:	Trevor Lloyd - Senior Planner Planning and Development Division Washoe County Community Services Department Phone: 775.328.3620 E-Mail: tlloyd@washoecounty.us

Project Description - To grade approximately 3,500 cubic yards (±83,315 square-feet) of dirt for the purpose of preparing the property for a residence, agricultural building and horse riding arena.

6	Location:	0 Mountain Ranch Road
٠	Assessor's Parcel Number:	150-250-48
0	Parcel Size:	±2.476
0	Master Plan Category:	Rural Residential (RR)
۲	Regulatory Zone:	High Density Rural (HDR)
۰	Area Plan:	Southwest Truckee Meadows
	Citizen Advisory Board:	South Truckee Meadows/Washoe Valley
۲	Development Code:	Authorized in Article 438, Grading Standards, Article 810 Special Uses
ø	Commission District:	2 – Commissioner Humke
٠	Section/Township/Range:	Section 26, T18N, R19E MDM, Washoe County NV

Notice is hereby given that the Washoe County Board of Adjustment granted approval with conditions of the above referenced case number based on the findings in accordance with Washoe County Development Code Section 110.810.30. If no appeals have been filed within 10 days after the date of decision, the approval by the Washoe County Board of Adjustment is final. If filed, an appeal stays any further action on the permit until final resolution of the appeal. If the end of the appeal period falls on a non-business day, the appeal period shall be extended to include the next business day. An appeal shall be filed in accordance with the provisions found in Article 810 of the Washoe County Development Code.

1. <u>Consistency.</u> That the proposed use is consistent with the action programs, policies, standards and maps of the Master Plan and the Southwest Truckee Meadows Area Plan;

- 2. <u>Improvements.</u> That adequate utilities, roadway improvements, sanitation, water supply, drainage, and other necessary facilities have been provided, the proposed improvements are properly related to existing and proposed roadways, and an adequate public facilities determination has been made in accordance with Division Seven;
- 3. <u>Site Suitability</u>. That the site is physically suitable for type and scale of grading, and for the intensity of such a development;
- 4. <u>Issuance Not Detrimental.</u> That issuance of the permit will not be significantly detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare; injurious to the property or improvements of adjacent properties; or detrimental to the character of the surrounding area;
- 5. <u>Effect on a Military Installation.</u> Issuance of the permit will not have a detrimental effect on the location, purpose or mission of the military installation.

This Action Order of approval is granted subject to the attached conditions and Washoe County development standards. Please contact the planner assigned to your project at the above-referenced phone number within 7 days of receipt of this Order to review the steps necessary to satisfy the Conditions of Approval. A business license, certificate of occupancy or final approval shall not be issued until all of the Conditions of Approval (attached) are satisfied. Additionally, compliance shall be required with all federal, state and local statutes, ordinances and regulations applicable to the approved project.

This Action Order does not authorize grading or building without issuance of the necessary permits from the Washoe County Building and Safety Department

Washoe County Planning and Development

William Whitney

Secretary to the Board of Adjustment

WW/TL/df

Attachments: Conditions of Approval

- Applicant/Owner:Christina Amundson, 3744 Vancouver Drive, Reno, NV 89511Representatives:K2 Engineering & Structural Design, Attn: Jared Krupa3100 Mill Street #107Reno, NV 89502
- Agencies: Gregory Salter, Esq., District Attorney's Office; Carol Buonanoma, Assessor's Office (CAAS); Theresa Wilkins, Assessor's Office; Fire Marshall Amy Ray, <u>aray@tmfpd.org</u>; Washoe County Health; John Cella, Water Resources; Leo Vesely, Engineering; Bob Webb, Planning and Development. South Truckee Meadows/Washoe Valley Citizen Advisory Board, Chair



Conditions of Approval

Special Use Permit Case Number SB14-010

The project approved under Special Use Permit Case Number SB14-010 shall be carried out in accordance with the Conditions of Approval granted by the Board of Adjustment on June 5, 2014. Conditions of Approval are requirements placed on a permit or development by each reviewing agency. These Conditions of Approval may require submittal of documents, applications, fees, inspections, amendments to plans, and more. <u>These conditions do not relieve the applicant of the obligation to obtain any other approvals and licenses from relevant authorities required under any other act or to abide by all other generally applicable Codes.</u>

<u>Unless otherwise specified</u>, all conditions related to the approval of this Special Use Permit shall be met or financial assurance must be provided to satisfy the Conditions of Approval prior to issuance of a grading or building permit. The agency responsible for determining compliance with a specific condition shall determine whether the condition must be fully completed or whether the applicant shall be offered the option of providing financial assurance. All agreements, easements, or other documentation required by these conditions shall have a copy filed with the County Engineer and the Planning and Development Division.

Compliance with the Conditions of Approval related to this Special Use Permit is the responsibility of the applicant, his/her successor in interest, and all owners, assignees, and occupants of the property and their successors in interest. Failure to comply with any of the conditions imposed in the approval of the Special Use Permit may result in the initiation of revocation procedures.

Washoe County reserves the right to review and revise the Conditions of Approval related to this Special Use Permit should it be determined that a subsequent license or permit issued by Washoe County violates the intent of this approval.

For the purpose of conditions imposed by Washoe County, "may" is permissive and "shall" or "must" is mandatory.

Conditions of Approval are usually complied with at different stages of the proposed project. Those stages are typically:

- Prior to permit issuance (i.e., grading permits, building permits, etc.).
- Prior to obtaining a final inspection and/or a certificate of occupancy.
- Prior to the issuance of a business license or other permits/licenses.
- Some "Conditions of Approval" are referred to as "Operational Conditions." These conditions must be continually complied with for the life of the project or business.

The Washoe County Commission oversees many of the reviewing agencies/departments with the exception of the following agencies.

• The DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH, through the Washoe County Health District, has jurisdiction over all public health matters in the Health District. Any conditions set by the District Health Department must be appealed to the District Board of Health. Washoe County Conditions of Approval

- The RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY is directed and governed by its own Board. Therefore, any conditions set by the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority must be appealed to their Board of Trustees.
- The REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (RTC) is directed and governed by its own board. Therefore, any conditions set by the Regional Transportation Commission must be appealed to that Board.

FOLLOWING ARE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL REQUIRED BY THE REVIEWING AGENCIES. EACH CONDITION MUST BE MET TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ISSUING AGENCY.

Washoe County Planning and Development Division

1. The following conditions are requirements of the Planning and Development Division, which shall be responsible for determining compliance with these conditions.

Contact Name - Trevor Lloyd, 775.328.3620, tlloyd@washoecounty.us

- a. The applicant shall demonstrate substantial conformance to the plans approved as part of this special use permit. The Planning and Development Division shall determine compliance with this condition.
- b. The applicant shall submit complete construction plans and building permits shall be issued within two years from the date of approval by Washoe County. The applicant shall complete construction within the time specified by the building permits. Compliance with this condition shall be determined by the Planning and Development Division.
- c. The applicant shall attach a copy of the action order approving this project to all administrative permit applications (including building permits) applied for as part of this special use permit.
- d. A note shall be placed on all construction drawings and grading plans stating:

NOTE

Should any prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be discovered during site development, work shall temporarily be halted at the specific site and the State Historic Preservation Office of the Department of Museums, Library and Arts shall be notified to record and photograph the site. The period of temporary delay shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) working days from the date of notification.

- e. The following **Operational Conditions** shall be required for the life of the development:
 - 1. Failure to comply with the Conditions of Approval shall render this approval null and void. Compliance with this condition shall be determined by the Planning and Development Division.

Washoe County Conditions of Approval

2. The applicant and any successors shall direct any potential purchaser/operator of the site and/or the special use permit to meet with the Planning and Development Division to review Conditions of Approval prior to the final sale of the site and/or the special use permit. Any subsequent purchaser/operator of the site and/or the special use permit shall notify the Planning and Development Division of the name, address, telephone number, and contact person of the new purchaser/operator within 30 days of the final sale.

Washoe County Engineering and Capital Projects

2. The following conditions are requirements of the Engineering and Capital Projects Division, which shall be responsible for determining compliance with these conditions.

Contact Name – Leo Vesely, 775.328.2040, lvesely@washoecounty.us

- a. A complete set of construction improvement drawings, including an on-site grading plan, shall be submitted when applying for a building/grading permit. Grading shall comply with best management practices (BMP's) and shall include detailed plans for grading, site drainage, erosion control (including BMP locations and installation details), slope stabilization, and mosquito abatement. Placement or removal of any excavated materials shall be indicated on the grading plan. Silts shall be controlled on-site and not allowed onto adjacent property.
- b. The owner/applicant shall obtain from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection a Stormwater Discharge Permit for construction and submit a copy to the Engineering and Capital Projects Division prior to issuance of a grading permit.
- c. The owner/applicant shall complete and submit the Construction Permit Submittal Checklist, the Performance Standards Compliance Checklist and pay the Construction Stormwater Inspection Fee prior to obtaining a grading permit. The County Engineer shall determine compliance with this condition.
- d. A grading bond of \$2,000/acre of disturbed area shall be provided to the Engineering and Capital Projects Division prior to issuance of a grading permit.
- e. The abandonment of the northern patent access easement shall be recorded prior to the issuance of a grading permit.

Washoe County Environment Health Department – Vector Borne Diseases

3. The following conditions are requirements of District Health Department, Vector Borne Diseases, which shall be responsible for determining compliance with these conditions. The District Board of Health has jurisdiction over all public health matters in the Health District. Any conditions set by the District Health Department must be appealed to the District Board of Health.

Contact Name – Jim Shaffer, 775.328.2434, jshaffer@washoecounty.us

a. The proposed flow line diversion will require 4-6 inch cobble rock in the flow line of these channels to reduce the downstream transport of sediment (040.021).

Washoe County Conditions of Approval

- b. In the design of rockery walls, voids shall be filled by placing smaller rock within 6 inches of the face of the rock wall for the entire height of the wall (040.081).
- c. Prior to the sign off of the building plans the above detail designs are required on the plans.

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

4. The following conditions are requirements of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, which shall be responsible for determining compliance with these conditions.

Contact Name - Amy Ray, 775.326.6005, aray@tmfpd.us

a. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District will require compliance with Washoe County Code 60. All requirements of Chapter 60 that apply to this development shall be met.

*** End of Conditions ***